Protocol Revision Request

October 4, 2001

Page 4

CARROLL & GROSS, L. L. P.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
A REGISTERED LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP
AUSTIN CENTRE, SUITE 310

701 BRAZOS

MARIANNE  CARROLL

AUSTIN, TEXAS  78701

DAVID B. GROSS, P.C

CHRIS REEDER

(512) 320-5951

.

FAX (512) 320-5920

October 4, 2001

Ms. Isabel Flores

Electric Reliability Council of Texas

7200 N. MoPac Expressway

Suite 250

Austin, Texas 78731


Re:
Gregory Power Partners, L.P. Protocol Revision Request



Section 4.4.5

Dear Ms. Flores:


This constitutes a request for revision of an ERCOT Protocol pursuant to Section 21 of the ERCOT Protocols.  This request is filed on behalf of Gregory Power Partners, L.P., (“GPPLP”), which owns the Gregory Power Facility (“Gregory”), a certified qualifying facility (“QF”).  GPPLP is an ERCOT market participant and a corporate member of ERCOT.  GPPLP is authorized to file this protocol revision request under Section 21.2.  We have simultaneously executed and delivered to you a completed ERCOT Protocol Revision Request form on this matter.

Please direct all correspondence to the undersigned, or to the following:

Dennis O’Donnell

Gregory Power Partners, L.P.

Old Town Square

One Chisholm Trail Rd. 

Suite 5150

Round Rock, Texas 78681

Relief Sought


GPPLP requests that ERCOT revise Section 4.4.5, which allows the ISO to require all QSEs representing resources to submit mandatory balancing energy service down bids.  The section requires that the percentage requirement by which each resource must balance down must be the same for all QSEs.  GPPLP requests that ERCOT revise this protocol to require the percentage requirement to vary between QSEs to the extent necessary to allow QFs within each QSE to continue to meet their contractual thermal obligations to their thermal hosts.  We have attached to this request the proposed new text for this protocol.

Organizational Information


Gregory is a QF operating a 401 MW (net) cogeneration facility in Gregory, Texas, located in the Central Power and Light service area.  Gregory provides 33 MW of firm electrical service, as well as 1,500,000 pounds/hour of steam, to its thermal host, BPU Reynolds, Inc.’s Sherwin Alumina Company, which operates the Sherwin Alumina Plant.
  Gregory also sells 335 MWs to Dynegy Power Marketing, Inc. under a long-term power purchase agreement for marketing in the ERCOT region.  Additionally, Gregory markets any additional excess electricity, which averages 20 MW per hour.  The remaining electricity is utilized by Gregory to service its own internal electrical requirements.

The Issue


Since commencement of the market trials, Gregory’s QSE (Dynegy) has received several notices, categories one and four, from the ERCOT ISO, instructing it to submit a mandatory balancing energy service down bid of 15% during on peak hours.   Pursuant to Protocol Section 4.4.5, the ISO indiscriminately required all QSEs representing resources to ramp down by 15%, and made no allowances for any unique circumstances that any resource faced.  


A mandatory balancing energy service down bid requirement of as much as 15% does not allow Gregory to meet its steam obligations to the Sherwin Alumina Plant, its thermal host. Undoubtedly, there are other QFs faced with a similar situation wherein the mandatory balancing down instruction can  result in a negative effect on service to their thermal hosts due to the hosts’ steam requirements.  By design, Gregory is a base loaded QF facility under the rights afforded to it by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission under its PURPA regulations.  Regardless of the PURPA rights, due to its high steam obligations, Gregory must run its gas turbines and steam turbine at full load to meet its steam obligations to its host.  This arrangement has allowed BPU Reynolds, Inc. to remain competitive in a very volatile alumina market.  If it were not for Gregory, the alumina plant most likely would shut down permanently and its production requirements would be met by an overseas facility.  BPU Reynolds and Gregory are the two largest taxpayers to the Gregory ISD and the largest employers in Gregory, Texas.  Each facility complements the other to help sustain the area’s economic stability.  Therefore, it is of paramount importance that ERCOT provide relief to Gregory from the down balancing requirements, because it affects the economic viability of Gregory and its steam host, as well as the surrounding community of Gregory, Texas. 

The Gregory Facility is willing to participate in the down bid market to the extent that it can do so without jeopardizing its thermal obligations to the Sherwin Alumina Company’s facility.  Under its present condition, Gregory can support a down bid of approximately 5% of its rated design.


Therefore, the protocol provision requiring that all QSEs must submit the same percentage balancing down bid presently prevents Gregory from providing full service to its thermal host.   The protocol should be structured in such a fashion to allow the ISO to issue balancing down instructions to those QSEs representing QF generators while allowing its QF generators the consideration required to continue to meet their thermal obligations, as they did prior to moving into single control area mock trials.  

Reasons for Revising the Protocol

Requiring Gregory to submit the same percentage balancing down bid as all non-QF resources impacts Gregory more profoundly than larger resources such as utility systems.  Gregory has only two customers, each of whom have fairly constant service requirements.  Requiring Gregory to back down by 15% therefore has a greater impact on its ability to service its downstream customers as compared to that of a utility.  


Additionally, requiring Gregory to submit the same percentage bid as all other resources potentially violates PURA §39.151 (l).  At the least, it violates that provision’s intent.  That statute prohibits any ERCOT ISO operating criteria, protocol, or other requirement from adversely affecting or impeding any manufacturing or other internal process operation associated with an industrial generation facility.  The statute allows such actions in situations necessary to assure transmission network reliability, but only to the “minimum extent necessary.”  While reliability concerns undoubtedly justify a balancing down requirement, an indiscriminate requirement applied to all QSEs across the board arguably violates the principle that the ISO can impact a QF, through its QSE, only to the “minimum extent necessary.”  ERCOT could avoid or substantially minimize the impacts that PURA prohibits by simply adjusting the mandatory percentages such that QFs can continue fully serving their thermal hosts.


Further, the protocol as currently applied is contrary to federal policies favoring the development and operation of qualifying facilities.  The Federal Power Act encourages the operation of qualifying facilities, and sets standards for state regulatory agencies in prescribing terms for their operation.  By failing to accommodate QF service to thermal hosts, the protocol tends to inhibit QF development by reducing QF reliability and thereby reducing the attractiveness of QF options to industrial process operators in a position to develop a qualifying facility. 

Finally, the balancing energy down situation affects QF customer reliability.  ERCOT should implement its requirements in a manner that does not create a potential adverse impact on customer reliability.

Requested Change


Accordingly, GPPLP requests that ERCOT revise the protocol to require that any mandatory balancing energy service down bid requirement not impair a QF’s ability to serve its thermal host.  GPPLP would recommend allowing the ISO to require QFs to submit the same bid as all other resources, however, in cases where the ISO has declared an emergency condition under Protocol Section 5.6.  

GPPLP’s proposed revision overcomes the problems that a mandatory balancing energy service down bid imposes on Gregory.  Also, the revision does not create a significant adverse impact on other resources that must submit incrementally greater bids as a result.  The increment of energy at issue is quite small compared to the entire ERCOT amount.  The down bid amounts lost to accommodating QF service to their thermal hosts, when allocated to all other resources, causes each resource to incur only a negligible incremental burden.  

Please advise me of any meetings or requests for further information of the Protocol Revision Subcommittee on this matter.  

Thank you for your attention to this request.






Very truly yours,






Chris Reeder

cc:

Parviz Adib

Gregory Power Partners, L.P.

Revised Protocol Section 4.4.5


GPPLP recommends modifying Section 4.4.5 as follows:


ERCOT will notify QSEs by 0600 of the Day Ahead of the QSE’s percentage requirement for Balancing Energy Service Down bids by Congestion Zone for each hour of the Operating Day.  The percentage requirement will be the same for all QSE’s, except that the percentage requirement shall vary to the extent necessary to allow qualifying facilities to meet their full thermal obligations to their thermal hosts.  In a system emergency condition declared under Section 5.6, however, the percentage requirement may be the same for all QSEs.  

� Alumina is used to produce aluminum metal.  The Sherwin Plant produces 24% of the total North American alumina production capacity.





